



APUS BYLAW AMENDMENT PACKAGE

Approved by the APUS Board of Directors
August 1, 2017
October 20, 2017

In this package:

- I. Summary of Changes**
- II. Proposed Bylaw Changes**



I. Summary of Changes

The proposed amendments seek to ensure accuracy of APUS bylaws with regards to membership fees, and definitions of members, representatives, sessions, designated publications and U of T campuses.

The proposed amendments further seek to clarify timelines for adjourned meetings, election procedures for representatives, and proxies at meetings of the members.

The proposed amendments further seek to ensure resolutions of the Board remain in effect until rescinded.

The proposed amendments further seek to update budget timelines, methods of giving notice and Executive portfolios with current practice.

The proposed amendments further seek to correct typos, mis-numbering, apply gender-neutral language throughout, and ensure internal consistency within Bylaws.



II. Proposed Bylaw Changes

Amendment #1:

Add the following definitions for “members” and “representatives” in Article 1.01.

(#) “Members” shall refer to members of the Corporation as defined in Article 3.01 herein;

(#) “Representatives” shall refer to members elected to the Assembly in accordance with Article 5.03 herein;

Amend the definition of “Session” in 1.01 as follows:

(p) "Session" means either the **fall**-winter session or the summer session of the University as defined in the relevant University calendar;

And re-alphabetize subsequent sub-clauses of 1.01.

Amendment #2:

Amend clause 3.03 clause (d) as follows:

3.03 Membership Fee

(d) In addition to the amount authorized in the foregoing provisions of this Section ~~3.04~~ **3.03**, the membership fee in the **Fall-Winter Session in 2017-2018 shall be \$119.32 for the APUS health plan and \$99.56 for the APUS dental Insurance Plan.** ~~shall include \$35.78 plus applicable taxes designated for the support of the APUS Accident and Prescription Drug Insurance Plan (“the Plan”).~~ The Board and the Assembly may, by resolution, direct that the Corporation shall cease to operate the Plan, in which event such fee shall cease to form part of the membership fee. The Board and Assembly shall have the authority to decrease this fee, or to make increases to the fee described herein, provided that such increases shall be subject to a yearly maximum increase of no more than ten percent (10%).

Amendment #3:

Amend clause 4.02 as follows:

4.02 Notices



Notices of the date, time and place of the annual meeting of members of the Corporation shall be given to members by publication in the two consecutive issues of the designated newspaper next preceding the meeting. If the designated newspaper is not then published, notice shall be given by posting of notices in public places on each of the University campuses, at locations designated by the Board. **In no case shall notice of the Annual Meeting be less than fourteen (14) days.** Notice of the date, time and place of the annual meeting of members of the Corporation shall be given to the auditors in writing at least fourteen days before the meeting. Notice of a meeting of members shall state the general nature of the business that is to be transacted thereat.

Amendment #4:

Amend clause 4.05 as follows:

4.05 Quorum

A quorum for the transaction of business at an annual meeting of members of the Corporation (pursuant to Section 4.01 hereof) shall be 50 members of the Corporation of whom at least 25 shall be present in person. If a quorum is not present within half an hour after the time appointed for the annual meeting, then the meeting shall be adjourned to a date being not less than three weeks nor more than ~~five~~**six** weeks from the date of the initial meeting and to such time and place as may be appointed by the Speaker. Notice shall be given of such adjourned meeting by publication in the issue of the designated newspaper preceding the date of the adjourned meeting by at least one week. Such notice shall specify the purpose for which the meeting was originally called. At such adjourned meeting, the members present in person or represented by proxy may transact the business for which the meeting was originally called and there shall be no quorum requirement for the purposes of properly constituting such adjourned meeting as an annual meeting of members.

Amendment #5:

Amend clause 4.08 as follows:

4.08 Proxies

Every member entitled to vote at a meeting of members may by means of a proxy appoint another member, as his nominee to attend and act at such meeting in a manner, to the extent and with the power conferred by the proxy. The proxy shall be in writing executed by the member or his attorney authorized in writing and shall conform with the requirements of the Act. The proxy shall cease to be valid after the expiration of one month from the date thereof. The proxy shall be deposited with the Secretary of

the meeting before any vote is cast under its authority, or before such earlier time, not exceeding 48 hours (excluding non-business days) preceding the meeting as the Board may fix by resolution. **No member may carry more than one (1) proxy.**

Amendment #6:

Split clause 5.03 clause (b) into two and re-order subsequent clauses as follows:

5.03 Election

- (a) The members of the Corporation in each Class shall be entitled to elect from amongst themselves one Representative for each 50 or less members in such Class to a maximum of 3 Representatives in any such Class;
- ~~(b) The instructor of a Class shall be requested to conduct and be responsible for the election of the Representatives in accordance with election guidelines as established by the Board from time to time.~~ Nominations shall be by and among the members of the Corporation in each Class with election by plurality of votes. Each member in each such Class shall be entitled to one vote;
- (c) Representatives must be elected within such time periods as may be specified by the Board from time to time and shall hold office until midnight on the first day of the session next following the session during which they were elected;**
- (d) Notwithstanding any defects in the election of a Representative, persons elected in accordance with the election guidelines established by the Board shall be deemed to properly hold office unless otherwise determined pursuant to paragraph (e) hereof;**
- (e) Any member of the Corporation shall be entitled within 30 days of any election of a Representative to refer the issue of the validity of such election to the Grievance Officer in accordance with the provisions of Article XIV hereof. If no such referral is made within such 30 day period then the results of such election shall be deemed final and binding upon all concerned;**
- (f) The instructor of a Class shall be requested to conduct and be responsible for the election of the Representatives in accordance with election guidelines as established by the Board from time to time.**
- (g) The Board shall establish and publish the rules relating to the conduct of elections of Representatives provided that the same are not in conflict with the letters patent or the by-laws of the Corporation.**

Amendment #7:

Amend clause 5.06 as follows:

5.06 Quorum



Twenty-five per cent of the members of the Assembly or 25 members of the Assembly, whichever is the greater, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings of the Assembly. If a quorum is not present within half an hour after the time appointed for the meeting, then the meeting shall be adjourned to a date being not less than three weeks nor more than ~~six~~ **five** weeks from the date of the initial meeting and to such time and place as may be appointed by the Speaker. Notice shall be given to all Assembly members of such adjourned meeting, such notice shall specify the purpose for which the meeting was originally called. At such adjourned meeting, the members present may transact the business for which the meeting was originally called and there shall be no quorum requirement for the purposes of properly constituting such adjourned meeting as a meeting of the Assembly.

Amendment #8:

Re-name Article 6 Directors as 'Board of Directors'.

VI. ~~DIRECTORS~~ BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Amend clause 6.02 clause (a) as follows:

6.02 Eligibility

Each Director and Officer shall be a Part-Time Undergraduate ~~undergraduate~~ Student and a member of the Assembly of Representatives during the session in which their election is held. ~~and pursuant to Section 3.02 hereof shall remain a member of the Corporation throughout the term of his or her office.~~

Amendment #9:

Amend clause 6.06 as follows:

6.06 Quorum

A quorum for meetings of the Directors shall be 50 per cent of the elected Directors then holding office (excluding ex-officio members) or five elected Directors whichever is the greater.

If a quorum is not present within half an hour after the time appointed for the meeting, then the meeting shall be adjourned to ~~a date being not less than three weeks nor more than six weeks from the date of the initial meeting and to~~ such time and place as may be appointed by the Speaker. Notice shall be given to all Directors of



such adjourned meeting, such notice shall specify the purpose for which the meeting was originally called. At such adjourned meeting, the Directors present may transact the business for which the meeting was originally called and there shall be no quorum requirement for the purposes of properly constituting such adjourned meeting as an meeting of the Board.

Amendment #10:

Amend clause 6.08 clause (b) as follows:

6.08 Removal of Directors

Any elected Director may also be removed from his or her position by resolution approved by at least 2/3 of the members of the Assembly of Representatives present and voting to the effect that such Director has failed to properly perform all or any part of the duties allotted to him or her as a Director. Notice of a resolution to remove a Director must be signed by 25% of the members of the Assembly and be given fifteen days (excluding non-business days) prior to the Assembly meeting where such resolution will be ~~put~~ **considered**.

Amendment #11:

Amend clause 6.11 as follows:

Article 6.11 Joint Meeting

A meeting of the Board of Directors shall be called no later than forty-five days after the election of the Directors by the Assembly, **and in no case later than April 30.** ~~and~~ **at** such Board meeting, both incoming and outgoing directors shall be entitled to be present; outgoing directors shall be entitled to exercise votes on all matters excepting the election of officers; and incoming Directors shall be entitled to exercise their votes only in connection with the election of officers.

Amendment #12:

Amend clause 6.14 as follows:

6.14 Open to ~~Public~~ **Membership**

All meetings of the Board shall be open to all members of the Corporation unless otherwise decided by a majority of the voting Directors present. If a meeting is closed

to the **public membership** the reason therefor shall be announced at the next meeting of the Board.

Amendment #13:

Amend clause 6.15 as follows:

6.15 Rescission of Resolutions

All resolutions passed by the Board shall remain in force until rescinded. Resolutions of the Board may be rescinded by a two-thirds vote of the Directors present and voting or by majority vote of the Directors present and voting if notice of resolution to rescind has been given at least one meeting prior to the meeting at which the resolution is rescinded.

~~Notwithstanding the above, after five years from the end of the academic year in which a resolution on a substantive matter or policy was approved by the Board, such resolution or policy shall cease to be in force and effect, unless specifically renewed by a simple majority vote of the Board.~~

Amendment #14:

Amend clause 6.21 as follows:

6.21 Remuneration and Expenses

Except for services provided by directors during temporary periods, which services are necessitated by the occurrence of ~~force majeure~~ **Force majeure**, the Directors shall not be paid any remuneration for their services as Directors.

Amend clause 6.22 as follows:

6.22 Conflict of Interest and Interest of Directors in Contracts

Subject to the provisions of the Act it shall be the duty of every Director of the Corporation who has, directly or indirectly, any material interest in any material contract or transaction to which the Corporation or a subsidiary thereof is or is to be a party, other than a contract for remuneration as a Director, Officer or employee, to disclose his or her interest in such contract or transaction in accordance with the requirements of the Act and to refrain from voting in respect thereof at any meeting of the Board of Directors, and any Director so disclosing his or her interest will not be counted as being present at the meeting for the purpose of determining whether a



quorum is present at the time a vote is taken in respect of the contract or transaction in which he or she has disclosed his or her interest.

Notwithstanding 6.02, no person in the employ of APUS shall serve as a Director or member of the Assembly while they are employed by the Corporation. A person who has been in the employ of APUS shall not be eligible to serve as a Director or member of the Assembly within a period of six months after the termination of their employment. Subject to the occurrence of ~~force majeure~~ **Force majeure**, no Director or Officer may apply for a position of employment with the Corporation while they are serving as a Director or Officer or for a period of six months after the Director or Officer has completed his or her mandate.

Amendment #15:

Amend clause 8.05 as follows:

8.05 Vice-President External

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board from time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the Vice-President (External) shall:

- (i) in the absence of the President, perform all duties of the President
- (ii) be responsible for representation of the Corporation in provincial and national student organizations; including the Canadian Federation of Students and Canadian Federation of Students-Ontario
- (iii) Along with Vice-President Events and Outreach be responsible for community outreach and liaising with other students and student/community organizations and their representatives on and off campus
- (iv) liaise with all student unions at the University of Toronto, including part-time student representatives elected at the University of Toronto Mississauga Students' Union and Scarborough Campus Students' Union
- (v) work with other executive members to organize campaigns, including campaigns on education, according to the mandate of APUS and as directed by the Executive, Board and Assembly\
- (vi) work with other executive members to implement the campaigns of the Canadian Federation of Students and Canadian Federation of Students – Ontario
- (vii) ~~be a signing officer for the Corporation.~~

Amend clause 8.06 as follows:



8.06 Vice-President Events and Outreach

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board from time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the Vice-President Events and Outreach shall:

- (i) be responsible for organizing social and membership development events, including orientation events for the Corporation
- (ii) coordinate the outreach and membership recruitment initiatives of the Corporation
- (iii) coordinate outreach across all campuses of the University of Toronto
- (iv) coordinate outreach with the APUS Class Representatives and volunteers
- (v) along with the Vice-President External, liaise with campus groups at the University of Toronto
- (vi) ~~be a signing officer for the Corporation.~~

Amend clause 8.07 as follows:

8.07 Vice-President Equity

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board from time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the Vice-President Equity shall:

- (i) work to improve the status of mature students, students with disabilities, student parents and other marginalized groups at the University
- (ii) work with other executive members to organize campaigns on part-time student issues, including but not limited to, access to education, childcare, transit, housing, tuition fees, and systemic discrimination in accordance with the mandate of APUS and as directed by the Executive, Board and Assembly
- (iii) liaise with equity-seeking campus groups and APUS levy groups
- (iv) liaise with the equity offices at the University of Toronto
- (v) along with the Vice-President Events and Outreach organize events promoting social justice and equity
- (vi) ~~be a signing officer for the Corporation.~~

Amendment #16:

Amend clause 11.04 as follows:

11.04 Referendum Procedure



A referendum of the members of the Corporation for the purposes of amending Section ~~3.04~~ **3.03** hereof, **or of removing an officer under Section 8.07(b) (ii) hereof**, shall be conducted in accordance with the following provisions:

Amendment #17:

Amend clause 12.01 as follows:

12.01 Method of Giving

Any notice, communication or other document to be given or sent by the Corporation to a Director, a member of the Assembly or Officer, or auditor of the Corporation under any provision of the letters patent or by-laws of the Corporation or the Act, shall be sufficiently given if it is:

(g) Sent to their email address as shown in the records of the Corporation

Amendment #18:

Amend clause 13.04 as follows:

13.04 ~~Summer and Winter Budgets~~ **Preliminary Budget**

The Finance Committee shall present a proposed ~~Summer~~ **Preliminary Budget for the fiscal year** to the Directors for their consideration no later than ~~April~~ **August** 1 in each year.

~~The Summer Preliminary Budget shall be the budget for the May 1 to August 31 period in each fiscal year.~~

~~The Finance Committee shall present a proposed Winter Operating Budget to the Directors for their consideration no later than August December 1 in each year. The Winter Budget shall be the budget for the September 1 to April 30 period in each fiscal year.~~

~~The Board shall cause a copy of the Summer and Winter Budgets to be sent to the Assembly.~~

Amend clause 13.05 as follows:

13.05 ~~Revised Winter Budget~~ **Operating Budget**



The Finance Committee shall present a proposed ~~Revised Winter~~ **Operating Budget** to the Directors for their consideration no later than ~~January 30~~ **December 1** of each year.

The ~~Revised Winter~~ **Operating Budget** shall provide revised estimates of income and expenditures to reflect the financial position of the Corporation for the current fiscal year.

~~The Board shall cause a copy of the Revised Winter Budget to be sent to the Assembly.~~

Add a new clause after 13.05 as follows:

13.0X **Revised Operating Budget**

The Finance Committee shall present a proposed Revised Operating Budget to the Directors for their consideration no later than April 30 each year. The Revised Operating Budget shall provide revised estimates of income and expenditures to reflect the financial position of the Corporation for the current fiscal year.

13.06 Approval of Budgets

~~The Winter and Summer Budget~~ **The Preliminary, Operating and Revised Operating Budgets** shall be approved by a majority of vote of the members of the Board present and voting at a meeting of the Board. Notwithstanding this provision, the Board may revise any budget at any time. To the extent that such decision revises or amends the expenditures or provides for new expenditures, shall be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Board present and voting at a meeting of the Board.

The Board shall cause a copy of the Preliminary, Operating, and Revised Operating Budgets to be sent to the Assembly.

Re-number the clauses of article 13 accordingly.

Amendment #19:

Amend clause 13.10 as follows:

13.10 Execution of Instruments

Instruments requiring the signature of the Corporation shall be signed by any two of the following persons: the President, the Vice-President **Internal, the Treasurer, the Secretary**, or the Executive Director of the Corporation. Any member of the Board may certify under the corporate seal copies of any by-law, resolution, minutes or other



document relating to the Corporation and any officer may sign a certificate under the seal of the Corporation as to matters of fact in connection with the Corporation within the purview of authority of such officer. Instruments so signed shall be binding upon the Corporation without further authorization of formality. The Board may at any time and from time to time direct the manner in which any person or persons by whom any particular instrument, class of instruments or instruments in general shall or may be signed. The corporate seal shall be affixed to any instrument on which the seal is required. For the purpose of this section, "instruments" include contracts, deeds, mortgages, transfers and assignments of any property of the Corporation, proxies, obligations, certificates and any other documents.

Amendment #20:

Amend clause 15.01 as follows:

15.01 Continuity of Assembly, Executive Committee and Officers

The Class Representatives, and ~~the President, Vice-President(s), Secretary and Treasurer and~~ the members of the Executive Committee of the Association of Part-time Undergraduate Students elected or appointed pursuant to the Constitution and the By-Laws of the Association of Part-Time Undergraduate Students in effect at the date of the enactment of this By-Law shall be deemed to be the members of the Assembly of Representatives, the officers and the members of the Board of Directors, respectively, of the Corporation until their successors are elected or appointed pursuant to the provisions of this By-Law.

Amendment #21:

Amend clause 13.09 as follows:

13.09 Borrowing

The Board of Directors may from time to time:

- (a) borrow money on the credit of the Corporation; or
- (b) charge, mortgage, hypothecate or pledge all or ~~may~~ **any** of the real or personal property of the Corporation including book debts, rights, powers, franchises and undertakings to secure any securities or any money borrowed, or other debt, or any other obligation or liability of the Corporation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation shall not:

- (i) borrow money other than from chartered banks or trust companies provided that such restriction shall not apply to purchase money obligations; or
- (ii) borrow money which is not fully repayable during a term of one year or less, unless approved by a resolution passed by two-thirds of the Directors present and voting

Amendment #22:

Replace 'Section 3.04' with 'Section 3.03' in clause 3.01, 3.02, 3.03 (c), 3.03 (d), 6.22, 11.01, and 11.03.

3.01 Membership

The following shall be members of the Corporation upon payment of the membership fee prescribed by section ~~3.04~~ **3.03**:

1. All Part-time Undergraduate Students, as defined in Section 1.01 hereof;
2. All Continuing Education students and Special students, as defined in Section 1.01 hereof
3. Any other individual who has taken, is taking, or will be taking at least one course at the University of Toronto during the academic sessions, subject to the following procedures:
 - a. A motion to admit a person (or groups of persons) shall be made at a Board of Directors meeting stating why they should be admitted;
 - b. At least one week's written notice must be given before the motion is to be voted upon;
 - c. The vote to admit shall be decided by a 2/3 vote of those Directors, who are present and voting.

3.02 Board of Directors

Persons elected to the Board shall be deemed to be members of the Corporation throughout their respective terms of office, provided that they pay the membership fee prescribed by Section ~~3.04~~ **3.03**.

3.03 Membership Fee

(c) In addition to the amount authorized in the foregoing provisions of this Section ~~3.04~~ **3.03**, the membership fee shall include one dollar per session designated for the support of the Ontario Public Interest Research Group-Toronto ("OPIRG") for so long



as the Corporation remains affiliated with OPIRG. The Board and the Assembly may, by resolution, direct that the Corporation shall cease to be affiliated with OPIRG, in which event such one additional dollar per session shall cease to form part of the membership fee and any amount collected and not previously remitted to OPIRG shall be applied for such purposes as the Board and Assembly may direct.

(d) In addition to the amount authorized in the foregoing provisions of Section ~~3.04~~ **3.03**, the membership fee in the Fall-Winter Session in 2017-2018 shall be \$119.32 for the APUS health plan and \$99.56 for the APUS dental Insurance Plan. The Board and the Assembly may, by resolution, direct that the Corporation shall cease to operate the Plan, in which event such fee shall cease to form part of the membership fee. The Board and Assembly shall have the authority to decrease this fee, or to make increases to the fee described herein, provided that such increases shall be subject to a yearly maximum increase of no more than ten percent (10%).

6.22 Conflict of Interest and Interest of Directors in Contracts

No member of the board of directors or agent of any organization receiving membership fees collected under Section ~~3.04~~ **3.03** may serve as a Director or Officer of the Corporation.”

11.01 Procedure

The Board may by resolution passed at a meeting of the Board enact, amend or repeal any by-laws not contrary to law, the Act or Letters Patent that regulate the affairs of the Corporation. The Board shall submit any such amendment, repeal or enactment of any by-law of the Corporation, except for amendments to Section ~~3.04~~ **3.03**, to the Assembly at the next meeting of the Assembly. The members of the Assembly may, at such meeting, by resolution passed by two-thirds of the members of the Assembly present and voting at such meeting, confirm, reject or amend such by-law, amendment or repeal. Notice of a meeting of the Assembly called to consider such resolution shall, in addition to the other requirements imposed by the by-laws be given as follows:

a) Notice of the full text of the proposed by-law or amendment shall be given to each member of the Assembly at least 14 days prior to the date of the meeting called to consider the same.

(b) A summary of the proposed by-law or amendment shall be published in the designated newspaper at least 14 days prior to the date of the proposed meeting called to consider the same and the full text thereof shall be available without cost to any member of the Assembly upon request at the offices of the Corporation.

11.03 Members' Approval

Any amendment, repeal or enactment of Section ~~3.04~~ **3.03** of this by-law shall be referred to the members of the Corporation for confirmation by referendum in accordance with the provisions of Section 11.04 hereof.

Amendment #23:

Replace the second 6.08 clause (b) with (c) and re-number accordingly.

6.08 Removal of Directors

(a) Any Director may be removed from their position on the Board by resolution approved by at least 2/3 of the remaining Directors to the effect that such Director has failed to attend three consecutive meetings of the Board and/or have missed more than 80% of the Board and Assembly meetings, without, in the opinion of the Board, reasonable cause for such absence and/or has in the opinion of the Board failed to properly perform all or any part of the duties allotted to him or her as a Director.

(b) Any elected Director may also be removed from their position by resolution approved by at least 2/3 of the members of the Assembly of Representatives present and voting to the effect that such Director has failed to properly perform all or any part of the duties allotted to him or her as a Director. Notice of a resolution to remove a Director must be signed by 25% of the members of the Assembly and be given fifteen days (excluding non-business days) prior to the Assembly meeting where such resolution will be considered.

~~(b)~~ **(c)** Any such removed Director shall receive written notice of their removal.

(c) (d) Any Director removed under Section 6.08 (a) shall be entitled to object to their removal by referring the issue to the Grievance Officer in accordance with the provisions of Article XV hereof within one week from the date of receipt of written notice of their removal.

~~(d)~~ **(e)** In the event that any such objection to the removal of a Director is not made within the time period allotted therefor or upon a final determination pursuant to the grievance procedure that such removal was authorized, then such removal shall be final and binding and the remaining Directors shall be authorized to fill the vacancy created by such removal in accordance with the provisions of 6.09.

Amendment #24:

Replace 'Article XV' in clause 6.08 d) and clause 9.02 b) with 'Article XIV'.

6.08 Removal of Directors

(d) Any Director removed under Section 6.08 (a) shall be entitled to object to their removal by referring the issue to the Grievance Officer in accordance with the provisions of ~~Article XV~~ **Article XIV** hereof within one week from the date of receipt of written notice of their removal.

9.02 Powers and Duties

(b) in a manner which permits such meetings to proceed fairly and efficiently. The Speaker shall rule on procedural matters arising at meetings of the Assembly of Representatives, the Board of Directors, and at the annual meeting of members of the Corporation. The Speaker shall also serve as Grievance Officer in accordance with the provisions of ~~Article XV~~ **Article XIV** hereof.

Amendment #25:

Re-number Article 'XIV. TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS' as 'XV. TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS'.

~~XIV.~~ XV. TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

Amendment #26:

Strike the second 8.07 clause and re-number subsequent clauses accordingly.

8.07 Vice-President Equity

~~8.07~~ **8.08** Term of Office and Removal of Officers

~~8.08~~ **8.09** Agents and Attorneys

~~8.09~~ **8.10** Variation of Duties

Amendment #27:

Re-number any other mis-numbered Articles accordingly.

Amendment #28:

Replace references to “newspaper” with “publication” in clauses 1.01 (g), 4.01, 4.02, 4.05, 11.01 (b), 11.04 (b), 12.01 (e).

(g) "Designated ~~newspaper~~ **publication**" shall mean the newsletter ***Voice***, or such other comparable ~~newspaper~~ **publication** (distributed on the University campuses and having comparable circulation) as the Board may by resolution designate.

4.01 Annual Meeting of the Members of the Corporation

The annual meeting of members of the Corporation shall be held on such day in each year at such time and at such place on or in the vicinity of the University campuses as the Board may from time to time determine, for the purposes of receiving the financial statements and the auditor's report thereon, appointing auditors for the ensuing year and authorizing the Board to fix the remuneration of the auditors. At least fourteen days before the annual meeting, the Corporation shall cause a copy of the balance sheet and statement of income and expenses, extracted from the Corporation's financial statements and the auditor's report thereon to be published in the designated ~~newspaper~~ **publication**. Copies of the complete financial statements shall be made available for inspection at the downtown campus and at each suburban campus.

4.02 Notices

Notices of the date, time and place of the annual meeting of members of the Corporation shall be given to members by publication in the two consecutive issues of the designated ~~newspaper~~ **publication** next preceding the meeting. If the designated ~~newspaper~~ **publication** is not then published, notice shall be given by posting of notices in public places on each of the University campuses, at locations designated by the Board. In no case shall notice of the Annual Meeting be less than fourteen (14) days.

4.05 Quorum

A quorum for the transaction of business at an annual meeting of members of the Corporation (pursuant to Section 4.01 hereof) shall be 50 members of the Corporation of whom at least 25 shall be present in person. If a quorum is not present within half an hour after the time appointed for the annual meeting, then the meeting shall be adjourned to a date being not less than three weeks nor more than five weeks from the date of the initial meeting and to such time and place as may be appointed by the Speaker. Notice shall be given of such adjourned meeting by publication in the issue of the designated ~~newspaper~~ **publication** preceding the date of the adjourned

meeting by at least one week. Such notice shall specify the purpose for which the meeting was originally called. At such adjourned meeting, the members present in person or represented by proxy may transact the business for which the meeting was originally called and there shall be no quorum requirement for the purposes of properly constituting such adjourned meeting as an annual meeting of members.

11.01 Procedure

(b) A summary of the proposed by-law or amendment shall be published in the designated ~~newspaper~~ **publication** at least 14 days prior to the date of the proposed meeting called to consider the same and the full text thereof shall be available without cost to any member of the Assembly upon request at the offices of the Corporation.

12.01 Method of Giving

(e) published in the Designated ~~Newspaper~~ **publication**; provided that this paragraph (e) shall not apply in respect of the auditors; or

Further amend clause 11.04 as follows:

11.04 Referendum Procedure

(b) Notice of the date, time, manner and place of the referendum shall be given to members by publication in the issue next preceding the referendum of the designated ~~newspaper~~ **publication** and in the two consecutive issues of ~~the Varsity, or the newspaper,~~ or in such other comparable ~~newspaper~~ **publication** (distributed on the University campuses and having comparable distribution) as the Board may by resolution designate next preceding the referendum, provided that in either case, notice of the referendum shall be first given twenty-one days prior to the date of the vote. If the designated ~~newspapers~~ **publications** are not then being published, notice shall be given by posting of notices at least two weeks prior to the scheduled date of the referendum in public places in each of the University campuses, at locations designated by the Board;

Amendment #29:

Replace “downtown campus” and “suburban campuses” with “St George campus” and “Scarborough and Mississauga campuses” in clauses 4.01, 5.09 and 6.13.

4.01 Annual Meeting of the Members of the Corporation



The annual meeting of members of the Corporation shall be held on such day in each year at such time and at such place on or in the vicinity of the University campuses as the Board may from time to time determine, for the purposes of receiving the financial statements and the auditor's report thereon, appointing auditors for the ensuing year and authorizing the Board to fix the remuneration of the auditors. At least fourteen days before the annual meeting, the Corporation shall cause a copy of the balance sheet and statement of income and expenses, extracted from the Corporation's financial statements and the auditor's report thereon to be published in the designated newspaper. Copies of the complete financial statements shall be made available for inspection at the ~~downtown~~ **St George** campus and at ~~each suburban campus~~ **Scarborough and Mississauga campuses.**

5.09 Meeting Procedure

Subject to the letters patent and by-laws, Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall be the rules of procedure at all meetings of the Assembly.

The agenda for an Assembly meeting shall be distributed under the authority of the Board, and shall set forth the items of business to be discussed at the meeting. Any matter not on the agenda distributed prior to the meeting may not be introduced unless the introduction thereof be agreed to by two-thirds of the members present and voting.

The Assembly may by resolution determine that a matter be included on the agenda of a subsequent meeting. In addition, on written request signed by at least 10% percent of the members of the Assembly, a stated matter or notice of motion shall be included on the agenda of the committee's next regular meeting. A Notice of Motion consists of the written submission of the resolution proposed, as well as the mover and seconder thereof.

A representative of the student organizations representing part-time undergraduate students at the ~~suburban campuses~~ **Scarborough and Mississauga campuses** shall be entitled to all of the rights of a member of the Assembly, save that said representative shall not be entitled to notice of meetings or to exercise votes at Assembly meetings.

6.13 Meeting Procedure

Subject to the letters patent and by-laws of the Corporation, Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall be the rules of procedure of meetings of the Board.

Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, or by resolution of the Assembly, the Board shall conduct its meetings by such rules of order as are considered just and



expedient for the transaction of the business before the Board meeting, save that the Speaker may, at their discretion, invoke Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised to expedite the transaction of business.

A representative of the student organizations representing part-time undergraduate students at the ~~suburban campuses~~ **Scarborough and Mississauga campuses** shall be entitled to all of the rights of a member of the Board, save that said representative shall not be entitled to exercise votes, to move or second motions, or to participate in in-camera sessions at Board meetings.

Amendment #30:

Amend clause 3.03 (a) as follows:

3.03 Membership Fee

(a) The membership fee shall be ~~twenty dollars~~ **\$27.30** in the winter session and ~~ten dollars~~ **\$13.65** in the summer session until changed by by-law. The Corporation may enter into an agreement or arrangement with the University whereby the University shall collect the membership fee from members together with student tuition payments and remit the membership fee to the Corporation in a manner satisfactory to the Directors, in satisfaction of the membership fee obligations of the members;

Amendment #31:

Amend clause 6.15 as follows:

6.15 Rescission of Resolutions

All resolutions passed by the Board shall remain in Force until rescinded. Resolutions of the Board may be rescinded by a two-thirds vote of the Directors present and voting. **Resolutions of the Board may also be rescinded** by majority vote of the Directors present and voting if notice of resolution to rescind has been given at least one meeting prior to the meeting at which the resolution is rescinded.

Amendment #32:

Replace all gendered language with gender-neutral language.